CABINET

12 MAY 2005

Councillor I.S Gollop (Chairman)

Councillors: A.A. Clarke P. Feeney

W.H. Golland V. McCrossen R.J. Nicholson R.A. Poynter

R.F. Spencer (a)

Observers: A.J. Gillam G.J. Griffiths

J.M. Parr

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Spencer.

TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 7 APRIL 2005.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the above meeting be confirmed and signed by the Chairman.

NOTTINGHAMSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN AND ARNOLD MOBILITY MANAGEMENT ACTION AREA (MMAA) CONSULTATION UPDATE

The Head of Cabinet Office informed Members of Nottinghamshire County Council's progress towards the next Local Transport Plan covering the Borough.

The Report also informed members of latest developments with regard to the Arnold Management Mobility Action Area.

Kevin Sharman from Nottinghamshire County Council attended the meeting and sought members' views on the emerging proposals.

In Nottinghamshire there were two LTP Areas, which were established in LTP1: -

- (i) North Nottinghamshire, covering the Districts of Bassetlaw, Newark and Sherwood, Mansfield and Ashfield (excluding Hucknall); and
 - (ii) Greater Nottingham, covering the City of Nottingham, the

Boroughs of Broxtowe, Gedling and Rushcliffe and the Hucknall part of Ashfield District. The Greater Nottingham LTP was prepared jointly with Nottingham City Council.

Nottinghamshire County Council was currently consulting on the development of the LTP2 that covered Gedling Borough and was seeking views on six specific issues relating to the LTP, details of which were included in the report and on any further general issues or concerns.

RESOLVED:

To advise the Nottinghamshire County Council of the Borough Council's response to the questions raised.

4 WARDEN QUALITY STANDARD

The Head of Planning and Environment informed Members of the award of the Warden Quality Standard to Gedling Borough Council's Neighbourhood Wardens.

RESOLVED:

To write to all the staff and Wardens thanking them for their work in achieving the award.

5 BESTWOOD VILLAGE CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISAL 2004-5

The Head of Planning and Environment reported that the Bestwood Village Conservation Area Appraisal had been undertaken since September 2003. After an extensive process of surveys, consultation and preparation of the detailed Appraisal Study Report in draft form, this document was now ready for final approval and adoption by the Council.

Under the Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Act 1990 Section 71 (2), there was a requirement for proposals for the preservation and enhancement of Conservation Areas to be submitted by the local planning authority for consideration.

Also, approval for the following revisions (extensions) to the Bestwood Village Conservation Area (first designated 1992) was sought, in accordance with the Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Act 1990 Section 70 (8):-

 Eastern and western extensions to the Conservation Area at Bestwood Country Park, so that this now followed defined features throughout (0.8 ha); Northern extension to incorporate entire Hawthorne School grounds (0.3 ha).

After consideration it was:-

RESOLVED:

To approve the following:-

- 1.Items for determination in paragraph 6.2 of Executive Summary document (attached to the report).
- 2. Project Plan & Consultations document, Conservation Area Appraisal process, September 2003 April 2005.

6 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME

The Head of Planning and Environment, on behalf of the Portfolio Holder reported that the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, which had come into effect on 28th September 2004, had introduced a new system for producing development plans, called Local Development Frameworks (LDFs). The first stage in this new process was to produce a LDS, which sets out the Council's intentions with regard to the content and timescale for production of new Local Development Documents (LDDs) that would make up the LDF. The Borough Council were required to submit the LDS to the Government Office for the East Midlands and the Planning Inspectorate (PINS) by 28th March 2005. A response had been received from PINS on 12th April 2005 confirming that the LDS as submitted was "fit for purpose" and was broadly satisfied with the programme for the examination of the proposed development plan documents. This would enhance the value of the Planning Delivery Grant next year.

In summary, it was proposed to submit the following documents for examination which would be subject to consultation and Cabinet and Full Council approval:

- o Statement of Community Involvement submit January 2006
- Core Strategy submit October 2006
- o Generic Development Control Policies submit July 2007
- Site Specific Allocations and Policies submit December 2009
- Arnold Town Centre Action Area Plan submit December 2008.

It was proposed that the Local Plan Steering Group be reformed as a LDF Steering Group in order to oversee the progress of the timetable of the LDS.

RESOLVED To:

- 1. Endorse that the LDS be made available for public inspection in accordance with Regulation 12 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004, and
- 2. That the Member for Development and Economic Regeneration establish a steering group to monitor the preparation of the LDF.

7 AUDIT COMMISSION INSPECTION REPORT

The Head of Planning and Environment reminded members that Planning Services had been the subject of an Audit Commission Inspection, the results of which had now been received. A copy of the Inspection Report and News Release were submitted for information.

The planning services (Local Plans, Development Control and Building Control) were assessed as being "fair" but "uncertain to improve".

Recommendations made by the Inspectors would now be taken on board and fed into the production of an improvement plan together with other matters identified by the self-assessments carried out as part of the current Best Value Review of the planning service.

RESOLVED:

To receive a report on progress in 6 months time.

8 ANNUAL EFFICENCY STRATEGY - FORWARD LOOK 2005-2006

The Head of Finance reminded members of the requirement to provide an Annual Efficiency Strategy – Forward Look 2005/2006 by 15 April 2005, to identify how the authority was working towards achieving its efficiency target for 2005/2006 of £360,000. The return to Government, which had to be endorsed by the Leader of the Council, the Chief Executive and Head of Finance (Chief Financial Officer) was in several parts namely:

- i) An overall strategy and key actions
- ii) A range of service strategies and key actions
- iii) A financial summary of efficiencies split between cashable and non-cashable items

Although the ODPM had not yet issued guidance, completion of the return was a statutory requirement and could be the subject of External

Audit. A copy of the Annual Efficiency Strategy and associated information was attached in the appendices to the report. This was returned to Government on 15 April 2005 as required.

Appendix 3, for which information in respect of 2005/2006 only was submitted to Government, showed that the Council was expecting to achieve efficiency savings of £546,000 of which 75% would be cashable – well in excess of the target figure.

RESOLVED:

That members note the Annual Efficiency Statement – Forward Look 2005/2006, which had been submitted to Government on 15 April 2005.

9 FINANCIAL IMPACT OF THE TERMINATION OF THE HIGHWAYS AGENCY

Consideration was given to a report on the Financial Impact of the Termination of the Highways Agency Agreement.

It was reported that as a result of the decision to terminate the Highways Agency, costs in 2005/2006 had risen by £12,100 and that medium and long term savings in excess of £200,000 per annum would be achieved.

RESOLVED:

- i) That members note the report.
- ii) The report be forwarded to the next meeting of the Resources and Management Scrutiny Committee.

10 HONEYWOOD GARDENS GARAGE COURTS

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services reminded members that in 1998, the Council had made a Compulsory Purchase Order relating to one of the garage courts at Honeywood Gardens in order to facilitate the proper planning objectives for the area after many of the garages had fallen into disrepair and become a focus for fly tipping and anti-social behaviour.

There were ten other garage courts on the estate and similar problems were becoming apparent with these. A preliminary survey had been carried out to assess the feasibility of compulsorily acquiring these remaining garage courts for development at no cost to the Council.

RESOLVED:

That members proceed, in principle, with a Compulsory Purchase Order for the garage courts and:-

- (i)Agree in principle that the ten garage courts at Honeywood Gardens be compulsory purchased by the Council at the same time;
- (ii) To carry out further enquiries as to the planning of the garages and the cost of additional resources required.

11 EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES POLICY

The Head of Personnel and Organisational Development submitted for members' approval, a revised Equal Opportunities Policy.

RESOLVED:

That the Equal Opportunities Policy as submitted be approved in respect of the Service Delivery aspects.

12 FORWARD PUBLICITY PLAN SPRING/SUMMER 2005

The Head of Cabinet Office submitted a report informing members of proposed publicity initiatives planned for coming months.

RESOLVED:

To note the report.

13 "ALL TOGETHER NOW" - NOTTINGHAMSHIRE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 2005-2009 - CONSULTATION

Thee Head of the Cabinet Office informed members of consultation being carried out by Nottinghamshire County Council on the draft Nottinghamshire Community Strategy 2005-2009 and to seek members' views on what, if any, response should be made to the consultation.

RESOLVED:

To advise the County Council of the Cabinet's doubts as to the value of relevance of the draft Strategy in its current form, to suggest to the County Council that the document should reflect the fundamental principle of subsidiarity and to advise the County Council that an opportunity for a dialogue with them on the matter would be welcomed.

14 ADOPTION OF THE ARTS STRATEGY

Consideration was given to a report of the Portfolio Holder for Leisure requesting Cabinet to adopt the Gedling Borough Arts Strategy.

RESOLVED:

To adopt the Arts Strategy for Gedling 2003-2008.

15 CALVERTON LEISURE CENTRE OPENING HOURS

Consideration was given to a report of the Portfolio Holder for Leisure on proposals relating to the revised opening hours of Calverton Leisure Centre.

RESOLVED:

- 1.To approve the reduced opening hours of Calverton Leisure Centre as detailed in the Officer Report with the addition of one further half day opening.
- 2.To note that a supplementary estimate would be required to cover the additional cost which would be incurred.
- 3.To request regular monthly usage reports at Cabinet.

16 ADOPTION OF SPORTS PHYSICAL ACTIVITY STRATEGY

The Portfolio Holder for Leisure submitted a report requesting the adoption of "Changing Lifestyles" a Sports and Physical Activity Strategy for Gedling 2005 – 2010.

RESOLVED:

To adopt the report.

17 PROGRESS REPORTS FROM PORTFOLIO HOLDERS

The following progress reports on items within their purview were received from Portfolio Holders:-

- 1. Housing
- Completion of Stock Appraisal Survey
- Working Groups on Housing Repairs and Maintenance programmes.

- 2. Development and Economic Regeneration.
- Town Centre Manager Award for Pub Watch and Radio links.
- 3. Agenda 21, Crime and Community Development.
- Area Based Initiatives
- Local Authority Agreements.
- 4. E Government and Member Services
- Numerous IT projects ongoing

18 FORWARD PLAN 01 JUNE TO 31 SEPTEMBER 2005.

RESOLVED:

To approve the Forward Plan as submitted.

19 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT.

KING GEORGE 5TH PLAYING FIELD.

Reference was made to the decision by the ODPM to grant outline planning permission to the Arnold Town Football Club for their proposed new Ground on land adjacent to the A614 and a request from the Club that they be allowed a short extension to their licence to use the King George V Playing Field.

RESOLVED:

- 1. To agree that consent might be given for Arnold Town Football Club to play a further 80 matches and train on King George V recreation ground, Arnold during the football season 2005/06 and to use the pavilion to the extent necessary for that purpose provided that:
- ii. The club first provide a project plan with timescale and key milestones showing clearly how the development of their new ground will be resourced, implemented and progressed;
- iii. The plan shows that the new ground will be completed and ready for occupation and use by the club before the end of the season 2005/06;
- iv. The club provide monthly progress reports demonstrating that the

plan is being complied with and that the milestones are being met;

2. That the Charity Commission be advised of this proposal and that a meeting be sought with the Commission if they raise any concerns.

The meeting closed at 8.40 pm.